
GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2015 
 

WORK SESSION – 6:00 P.M. 
1. Provide Direction Regarding Retiree Health Care Alternatives 

2. Review 2015 Project List 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA  
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Approve February 9, 2015 Regular Board Minutes  

2. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $232,587.40 (A/P checks of 

$147,463.71 and payroll of $85,123.69) 

3. Approve Appointment of Trustee Behm to Zoning Board of Appeals with a term 

ending 11/30/2016 

4. Approve 2015 Dust Palliative Contract with “Michigan Chloride Sales” ($30,560) 

5. Approve Contract with “Utility Financial Solutions” for 2015 Water/Sewer Cost of 

Service Rate Study ($17,600) 

 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Resolution 15-02-02 – Approve Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest 

Ottawa County 2015 – 2019 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Closed Session - Both to Consider the Contents of a Written Opinion from the 

Township Attorney, and to Consider the Purchase or Lease of Real Property. 

 

VIII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Correspondence 

2. Committee Reports  

3. Manager’s Report 

a. January Legal Review  

b. January Law Enforcement Report 

4. Others 

 

IX. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENTS/QUESTIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS ONLY 

(LIMITED TO THREE MINUTES, PLEASE.) 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTE: The public will be given an opportunity to comment on any agenda item when the item is brought 

up for discussion.  The supervisor will initiate comment time. 























 

 -1- 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2015 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor French called the regular meeting of the Grand Haven Charter Township 

Board to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

Board members present: French, Larsen, Behm and Kieft. 

Board members absent: Hutchins, Meeusen and Redick. 

 

Also present were Manager Cargo and Planner Fedewa. 

 

IV.       APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

  

Motion by Treasurer Kieft and seconded by Trustee Behm to approve the meeting 

agenda. Which motion carried. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve January 26, 2015 Regular Board Minutes 

2. Approve February 4, 2015 Special Joint Board/Planning Commission Minutes 

3. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $236,481.13 (A/P checks of 

$124,651.29 and payroll of $111,829.84) 

4. Approve Sounds of Summer License Agreement with "Walk the Beat", a local, non-

profit organization 

5. Approve Millhouse Court Water Main Construction Bid to Northern Pipeline 

Contactors, Inc.  ($32,115.50) 

6. Approve Appointment of David Gignac to Planning Commission for a term ending 

August 31, 2017 

 

Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Supervisor French to approve the items listed 

on the Consent Agenda.  Which motion carried. 

  

VI. PUBLIC HEARING – Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa 

County 2015 - 2019 

 

Supervisor French opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 

 

Laird Schaefer (12543 Wilderness Trail) spoke regarding the proposed regional 

recreation plan and recommended specific changes to the document. 

 

Planner Fedewa reviewed the plan and recommended certain amendments/additions to 



 

 -2- 

the draft. 

 

Supervisor French closed the public hearing at 7:13 p.m.  

 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Motion by Clerk Larsen and supported by Treasurer Kieft to approve and 

adopt the proposed rezoning of parcels 70-07-12-300-033 and 70-07-12-300-

036 from R-2 Single Family Residential to Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the 

attached report. This approval is conditioned upon the following: 

a. Approval and compliance with all requirements of the OCRC, OCWRC, 

and MDEQ. Copies of approvals and/or permits must be submitted to 

staff and made part of the file. No building permits shall be issued until 

all permits have been obtained. 

b. Sidewalk shall be installed within 5 years of the first occupancy permit 

issued in Phase 1, or prior to the issuance of the first occupancy permit 

for Phase 2—whichever is later.  

c. Individual certificates of occupancy shall not be granted until the 

sidewalk and landscaping for that unit is installed. Sidewalks and 

landscaping shall comply with the plan dated 12/30/2014. 

d. Combine parcels 70-07-12-300-033 and 70-07-12-300-036. 

e. The Developer shall enter into a PUD Contract with the Township. The 

Contract shall be reviewed and approved by the Township Board prior to 

final approval of the development. 

f. The Developer shall enter into a Special Assessment Lighting District 

(SALD) Agreement with the Township. The Agreement and Resolution 

adopting the SALD shall be reviewed and approved by the Township 

Board prior to final approval of the development. 

g. The Developer shall enter into a Special Assessment Agreement for 

private road maintenance with the Township. The Agreement shall be 

reviewed and approved by the Township Board prior to final approval of 

the development.   

This is the second reading.  Which motion carried, as indicated by the 

following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Larsen, Kieft, French, Behm 

Nays: 

Absent: Hutchins, Meeusen and Redick. 

 

 VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. Motion by Supervisor French and supported by Trustee Behm to approve Resolution 

15-02-01 approving a one-year license agreement with Republic Services for waste 

collection and hauling services in Grand Haven Charter Township.  Which motion 

carried, as indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Kieft, French, Larsen, Behm 

Nays: 



 

 -3- 

Absent: Hutchins, Meeusen and Redick. 

 

2. The Board instructed staff to postpone a vote adopting the Community Parks and 

Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County 2015 – 2019 until the amendments 

discussed at the public hearing were incorporated. 

 

IX. REPORTS AND CORESPONDENCE 

a. Correspondence was reviewed 

b. Committee Reports  

i. Clerk Larsen noted that the Personnel Committee Meeting for February was 

cancelled. 

ii. Clerk Larsen noted that the Ottawa County Clerks Association is meeting on 

February 13
th

. 

iii. Clerk Larsen noted that a lunch meeting with election workers will be held on 

February 18
th

. 

c. Manager’s Report, including: 

i. Cargo noted his decision to waive bids pursuant to Administrative Policy 

5.11a for Flygt pumps at a cost of $15,745. 

ii. Cargo provided the January Ordinance Enforcement Report. 

iii. Cargo provided the January Building Report. 

d. Others 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

  

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Behm to adjourn the meeting at 7:23 

p.m. Which motion carried.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Laurie Larsen 

Grand Haven Charter Township Clerk 

 

 

 

Karl French 

Grand Haven Charter Township Supervisor 

































1 | P a g e  

 

 

Community Development Memo 
 

 DATE:  February 19, 2015 

 

 TO:  Township Board 

 

 FROM: Fedewa 

 

RE: Updated 2015 – 2019 Community Parks and Recreation Plan 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PURPOSE 

 

At a public hearing held February 9
th

 the Township Board postponed adopting a resolution for the 

Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County, 

2015 – 2019 in order to review the proposed updates to the plan recommended by staff, and those 

provided during the public hearing. 

 

As you may recall, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) provides financial 

assistance through a variety of programs to acquire land and/or develop park facilities. To be 

eligible to apply for these grants, a community must have an approved, five-year recreation plan on 

file with the Grants Management office of the DNR. In addition, the plan provides direction for 

capital spending and improvements to the parks system outside of any grant considerations. 

 

In order to collaborate and reduce future costs, the five communities in Northwest Ottawa County 

(i.e., Grand Haven Township, Grand Haven City, Spring Lake Township, Spring Lake Village and 

City of Ferrysburg) agreed to complete the five-year recreation plan as a group. Please review the 

attached plan, which includes the updates (pages of interest are: 13, 14, 21, 23, 73-74, 115, 134, 

and 163-164). 

 

Since the February 9
th

 public hearing the other four municipalities have adopted the plan, and 

in order to be eligible for grant funding the plan must be submitted to the DNR no later than March 

1, 2015.  

 

 

 

 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

STAFF REVIEW 

 

As directed by the Township Board the following changes/additions have been made to the Plan: 

 

 Non-Motorized Pathway System was expanded and a map included. 

 Recent 40 acre acquisition was added to the Hofma Park and Preserve information. 

 The Witteveen property and its significance was explained more clearly. 

 Definitions were added to clarify the various recreation facilities. 

 Miscellaneous clerical errors were fixed (i.e., Clerk Larsen, number of Planning 

Commissioners, corrected map legends, missing parks). 

 

Staff has reviewed the updated Draft Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and 

Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County, 2015 – 2019. The deficiencies identified by the 

Board, staff, and citizens have since been addressed. Staff is now confident in the Township’s 

ability to secure grant funding opportunities. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends the Township Board adopt Resolution No. 15-02-02. The Resolution will adopt 

the Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa 

County, 2015 – 2019. If the Township Board agrees with the aforementioned recommendation, the 

following motion can be offered: 

 

Motion by ______________, supported by _____________, to adopt Resolution 

No. 15-02-02 to adopt the Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and 

Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County, 2015 – 2019. 

 

 

Please contact me prior to the meeting with questions or concerns. 



At a regular meeting of the Township Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of 

Grand Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan, held on the 23
rd

 day of February 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

The meeting was held at the Township of Grand Haven, 13300 168th Avenue, Grand Haven, 

Michigan. 

 

PRESENT:  

ABSENT:  

 

After certain matters of business had been discussed, Supervisor French announced that 

the next order of business was the consideration of a resolution to adopt the Explore the Grand 

Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County, 2015-2019. 

Following discussion, the following resolution was offered by _____________ and supported by 

_______________. 

 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. 15-02-02 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Grand Haven has undertaken a planning process 

to determine the recreation and natural resource conservation needs and desires of its residents 

during a five year period covering the years 2015 through 2019; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Grand Haven has entered into this planning 

process in collaboration with the City of Ferrysburg, City of Grand Haven, Spring Lake 

Township, and the Village of Spring Lake; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the combined area of the aforementioned local units of government constitutes 

the planning area; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Grand Haven is of the understanding that the 

governing bodies of the aforementioned local units of government intend to pass a similar 

resolution of adoption of Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in 

Northwest Ottawa County, 2015-2019; and,  

       
WHEREAS, the governmental members began the process of developing a community 

recreation plan in accordance with the most recent guidelines developed by the Department of 

Natural Resources and made available to local communities; and, 

 
WHEREAS, residents of the planning area were provided with a well-advertised 

opportunity during the development of the draft plan to express opinions, ask questions, and 

discuss all aspects of the recreation and natural resource conservation plan; and, 



WHEREAS, the public was given a well-advertised opportunity and reasonable 

accommodations to review the final draft plan for a period of at least 30 days; and, 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 9, 2015 at Grand Haven Charter 

Township Board Room to provide an opportunity for all residents of the planning area to express 

opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the  Explore the Grand Region: A Community 

Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest Ottawa County, 2015-2019;  and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Grand Haven has developed the plan as a 

guideline for improving recreation and enhancing natural resource conservation for the 

Township; and, 

 
WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the Grand Haven Charter Township Board voted to 

adopt said Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in Northwest 

Ottawa County, 2015-2019. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Grand Haven Charter Township Board 

hereby adopts the Explore the Grand Region: A Community Parks and Recreation Plan in 

Northwest Ottawa County, 2015-2019, as amended. 

 

Ayes:   

Nays:  None. 

Absent:  

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED: Adopted 

ADOPTED ON: February 23, 2014 

  

_______________________________ 

Laurie Larsen, Township Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Grand 

Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan, certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on 

the 23
rd

 day of February, 2015. I further certify that public notice of the meeting was given 

pursuant to and in full compliance with Michigan Act 267 of 1976, as amended, and that the 

minutes of the meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by the 

Act.   

 

______________________________ 

Laurie Larsen, Township Clerk 


















	02232015 - TB Agenda
	2015 Project List
	02092015 - TB Minutes
	ZBA Appointment - Behm
	2015 Dust Control
	Cost of Service Water & Sewer Rate Study
	TB Memo - Update - Community Parks  Rec Plan Review_02192015
	Resolution 15-02-02 - Adopt 2015-2019 Community Parks and Recreation Plan in NW Ottawa County
	January Law Enforcement Report

